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Brooklandville Tenant Houses 
Brooklandville 
Maryland 
Private 

c. 1800 

These important little structures, among the earliest in the district and 
related to the most important house in the district, are maintained as contem­
porary rental units, a use and plilysieaJ condition wholly compatible with the 
original. 
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. The BROOKLANDWOOD TENANT HOUSES are three structures 
remotely located and separately deeded from Brooklandwood (man­
sion). Closely oriented to a driveway leading north off Green 
Spring Valley Road, the three structures face east. For conven­
ience in description, the southerly structure, closest to the 
Green Spring Valley Road, here is called BROOKLANDWOOD TENANT 
HOUSE NUMBER l; the middle structure is called NUMBER 2 and the 
northerly structure is called NUMBER 3. 

NUMBER 1 is a two-storey stone structure consisting of 
three units: a central unit With gables to the front and rear 
(east and west) having lower two-storey wings, each four bays in 
length. NUMBER 2 is a two-storey brick and stone structure also 
consisting of three units, very different from Number 1 in form: 
a southerly two-storey brick unit with gables north and south; a 
similar unit to the west but with a stone shed across its rear 
(west) side, its eave one low storey above grade; and a one and 
one-half storey brick hyphen linking the east and west units. NUM­
BER 3 is a two storey frame house with a rear wing. 

As might be expected these multiple parts were built 
at different times. A precise construction decade is impossible 
to determine due to the very simple original construction, almost 
wholly unaffected by style, and the extensive modern interior 
finishes. The oldest unit is the front or easterly part of NUM­
BER 2 and While it may date from the last decade of the eighteenth 
century it probably dates from the first decade of the nineteenth. 
Two storeys, brick construction, common bond, it measures approxi­
mately 16 by 22 feet. The northerly two bays of the north wing 
of NUMBER 1 may be its contemporary or only slightly later; of 
stone construction, it is approximately 17 feet square. The brick 
westerly unit of NUMBER 2, together with the brick hyphen, con­
structed simultaneously, is only slightly later than the front 
or easterly unit, perhaps dating from 1820-1840. Roughly con­
temporary are the southerly two bays of the north wing of NUMBER l, 
the south wing of NUMBER 1 in its entirety, and the stone shed at 
the west end of NUMBER 2. Construction details of all these units 

O·,··· '· 

I 
I 

are extremely simple; all have been extensively refinished as ;,; · 
aodern dwelling uni ts; and the interior of the south wing of NUM- f· • 
BER 1 was not accessible for inspection. By the end of the nine- .-·~·· , : .·, 
teenth century NUMBER l was a pair of duplex tenant houses, the ,, 
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two wings of the existing three-part structure. NUMBER 2 was its 
present form, probably also a duplex residence. In the last 
decade of the nineteenth century, or very early in the twentieth, 
probably when Brooklandwood (mansion) was expanded so extensively, 
NUMBER 1 was brought to its present form by the construction of 
a central pavilion to link the older duplexes. NUMBER 3 was con­
structed as another duplex residence, each two bays in Width, each 
sharing the rear wing. 

An outline plan of these complex little structures is 
included to explain this sequence. 

TENANT HOU SE NUMBER 1 - I ~9-f { /j' If j 

Part 1 (1800-1820) 

In the east or principal front of this oldest section 
the southerly bay originally had a door, now converted to a window. 
The original window opening in the northerly bay retains a 6/6 
window of original size with thick frame. A stone jack arch is 
above each opening. Access to the cellar under Part 1 is through 
hatch doors beneath the original window. A brick chimney stack 
is flush with the original south gable of this part. A single 
room is in each storey, both extensively but simply refinished in 
modern times. A fireplace in the first storey is closed but one 
in the second storey is open; neither has an old mantel or surround. 
The enclosed and winding staircase is in the alcove west of .the 
chimney. The second storey ceiling joists are the collar beams. 
The attic space is inaccessible. In the cellar an arch is beneath 
the fireplace of the first storey. 

Part 2 (1820-1840) olS7'• zttA) 

Part 2 approximately doubled the length of Part 1 and 
a similar duplex some thirty feet south was erected in the same 
period. Each duplex is now a single modern residence. Entrances 
are in each end bay of the principal or east front and 6/6 windows 
with narrow frames and exposed wooden lintels are in the middle 
bays. A massive brick chimney rises through the roof ridge within 
the southerly bay of the northerly unit. A small gabled porch 
shelters each entrance. Interior finishes are modern, quite simple 
and compatible with the original. The southerly duplex was not 
accessible for interior inspection. No portion of Part 2 has a 
cellar. 
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Part 3 joined the two earlier parts to form a single 
three-part structure. Three bays in width With gabled roof to 
the front its eaves are higher than those of the earlier flank­
ing wings and its design makes it the principal or dominant 
element of the three-part structure. Double doors are in the 
middle bay of the first storey and double 2/2 windows are in 
flanking bays of both storeys; by contrast a single 2/2 window 
is in the middle bay of the second storey. All Windows have seg­
mental arches above. A single 2/2 window is in the stoccoed 
gable. A one-storey porch shelters the east front. 

Within is a center hall with an open stair having a 
moulded rail supported by square balusters and newels rising 
above a closed string. A single large room is to the north, 
two rooms are to the south; the second storey is similar but with 
smaller rooms throughout. The four-panel doors and the windows 
are trimmed with routed corner-block trim; walls and ceilings are 
of plain plaster; the third storey is finished in wainscotting. 
A small cellar is beneath the westerly portion. Exposed framing 

~ is circular sawn; cellar walls are of poured concrete. 

TENANT HOUSE NUMBER 2 - ;s-r.r (1111) 
Part 1 (1800-1820) 

This section is two storeys in height, three bays in 
width, with a gabled roof and an interior brick chimney flush 
with the north gable. The walls are laid in common bond, every 
sixth course headers. The principal entrance is centered in the 
east front and 9/6 windows are in flanking bays; 6/6 windows are 
in each bay of the second storey. A single similar Window is 
centered in each storey of the south end and a small 4-light case­
ment is in the attic. In the north end is a single 6/4 window 
in the first storey, west of the chimney, its height matching 
that of typical windows, its Width one light less. Windows re­
tain original wide frames joined by pegge·d mortise-and-tenon and 
some retain driven pentels for original shutters. Lintels are 
not visible and there are no arches above openings. The beaded 
fascia is probably original but it has been lengthened to create 
a wide rake eave at the south gable. 

The single room in the first storey retains a fireplace 
surround which is probably original: a single-plane architrave 
surround With ovolo backhand. The cornice shelf is modern as is 
the horizontal beaded wainscotting and the random-width flooring 
secured with modern wrought-head nails. An enclosed winding stair, 
formerly east of the chimney, is removed but its outline is 
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apparent in the second floor.and its space is now a closet having 
a door with four fully-raised panels without fillets. In the 
second storey the chair railing is original: an ovolo cap on a 
beaded fascia. The plain beaded trim on doors may be original and 
the windows are void of trim. 

In the cellar the exposed joists are straight sawn and 
the original flooring is beneath the modern flooring exposed above. 

Part 2 (1800-1840) 

The orientation of the principal section of Part 2 
matches that of Part 1 and like Part 1 1 its brick walls are laid 
in common bond with every sixth course headers. The hyphen roof 
is a single pitch, its ridge, level with adjacent eaves, above 
its north wall which is flush with the north end walls of Parts 
l and 2 and it falls to a low south eave to include a porch be­
tween the two taller sections east and west. Within the porch 
the taller westerly portion of Part 1 has a 6/6 Window in the 
south bay, a door in the middle bay, adjacent to the hyphen. Both 
units are modern and a door was originally in the south bay. 

~ A 6/6 window with wide pegged frame is centered in the south and 
north gables; a similar window with a narrower frame is above and 
a single 6-light sash is in the attic. A 6/6 window with narrow 
frame is in the westerly bay of the hyphen and a door is in the 
easterly bay, now closed with wood. A 4-light casement is above 
each in the second storey. A modern steel flue rises flush with 
the north gable, east of the ridge. 

In the cellar, which is beneath the taller westerly 
section only, an arch against the east wall at the northeast cor­
ner indicates a former fireplace above, now removed. ~he exposed 
joists are modern as are virtually all other interior finishes. 
In the attic, accessible by a hatch in the ceiling at the north 
gable, flooring, now removed, was secured with hand-made wrought­
iron nails; the joists and rafters are straight-sawn, the latter 
joined at the ridge with pegged mortise-and-tenon. Traces of 
whitewash on the brick walls beneath the former floorboards in­
dicate that the second storey interior walls were simply white­
washed as their original finish. 

Part 3 {1840-1880) 

Part 3 is a shed addition across the entire rear or 
west facade of Part 2, its walls of rubble stone. Its roof is a 
continuation of the roof of Part 2 and it sweeps to a picturesquely 
low eave with two small shed dormers each containing 3/3 Windows. 
A single 6/6 window is in the northerly bay. Interior finishes are 
all modern. 

Ii 
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Of frame construction, four bays in length, two storeys 
in height, NUMBER 3 is a very typical late nineteenth century 
tenant house. A one-storey porch shelters the principal or east 

\front. The end bays each have a 6/6 window in each storey with 
narrow frame and louvred blinds. The principal entrance is in 
the northerly middle bay and a similar doorway adjacent to the 

#:·south is now eliminated. A doubled window is centered above the 
<entrances. A service wing, also two storeys in height, extends 
to the rear (west), a porch in the angle between it and the main 
section. The interior was not inspected. '·~·.· 
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The BROOKLANDWOOD TENANT HOUSES, though now separately 
deeded from the mansion, were part of the vast Brooklandwood tract. 
The earliest sections of brick and stone are nearly contemporary 
with the original mansion and they were expanded very early in 
the nineteenth century. By the mid-nineteenth century they almost 
formed a little village, perhaps with other tenant houses, barns 
or outbuildings, now removed. The two southerly duplexes were 

K joined ca. 1898 by a center pavilion to form an impressive tri-
~ partite structure in the same period Which saw a dramatic expansion 

f""' of the Brooklandwood mansion and the northerly frame structure was 
added to the complex at this time. 

These important little structures, among the earliest in 
the district and related to the most important house in the dis­
trict, are maintained as contemporary rental units, a use and 
physical condition wholly compatible with the original. 
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The Maryland Historic Sites Inventory was officially created 
by an Act of the Maryland Legislature, to be found in the 
Annotated Code of Maryland, Article 41, Section 181 KA, 
1974 Supplement. 

The Survey and Inventory are being prepared for information 
and record purposes only and do not constitute any infringe­
ment of individual property rights. 
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These houses were lived jn by the farm hands and the farmer of Brooklandwood. The 
original driveway to the Brooklandwood mansion passed between these two eom-' -plexes. Complex #1 housed the main farmer. When these were bought by Brook-
land wood, Inc., Foster Fenton, owner and also owner of neighboring Brooklandwood, 
rented them.~ The present owners have renovated these houses for rental. 

Footnotes 

1 Conversation 'With Mrs. H. Benthall Marshall. 

~ Recollection of researcher. 

Deed Search Baltimore County Land Records 

1976 Liber 5636, Folio 913 Brooklandwood Assoc. to Emerson Fanns 
1975 Liber 5596, Folio 591 Mercantile Trust for Brooklandwood, Ine. to Brooklandwood 

Association. 
1951 !,iber 1!9S, Folio 45 E. Looram to Brooklandwood, Inc. 

E. Looram inherited from her mother A. P. Emerson, R.egistar of Wills, J.P. C. 40 /370 
Ann Peterson Tt:merson inherited from Isaac, her husband , Register of Wills, JPC 27/30 
Deeds from Carroll (1790) to Emerson (1916) See Historical Site #S7 Brooklandwood. 
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